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1.0 APPLICATION SUMMARY

Applicant: Johnson Pope Bokor Ruppel & 
Burns, LLP

FLU Category: OC-20

Service Area: Urban

Site Acreage: .52

Community 
Plan Area: Ruskin

Overlay: None

Introduction Summary:
The applicant proposes to rezone the subject property from RTC-1 (Ruskin Town Center) to Planned Development 
(PD) to allow uses permitted under the RTC-1 zoning district and motor vehicle sales (a prohibited use in RTC-1).

Zoning: Existing Proposed
District(s) RTC-1 PD 18-0798

Typical General Use(s)
Ruskin: Limited General 
Commercial and Multi-

Family Residential

Ruskin: Limited General Commercial Uses (to include motor 
vehicle sales) and Multi-Family

Acreage .52 .52

Density/Intensity 20 units per acre / .75 
FAR 20 units per acre / .75 FAR

Mathematical 
Maximum* 10 units /16,988 sq. ft. 10 units /16,988 sq. ft.

*number represents a pre-development approximation 

Development Standards: Existing Proposed
District(s) RTC-1 PD 18-0798

Lot Size / Lot Width

Per Ruskin Town 
Center 

Development 
Standards

Per Ruskin Town Center Development Standards

Setbacks/Buffering and 
Screening

Per Ruskin Town 
Center 

Development 
Standards

Per Ruskin Town Center Development Standards

Height 50’ 50’

Additional Information:
PD Variation(s) None requested as part of this application

Waiver(s) to the Land Development Code LDC Section 3.17.03 & 3.17.04 – Off-street parking, minimum building 
frontages and building design.



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady 

Page 2 of 18

Planning Commission Recommendation:
Inconsistent

Development Services Recommendation:
Not Supportable

2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.1 Vicinity Map

Context of Surrounding Area:

The site is located in an area comprised of suburban scale neighborhood commercial and residential uses. The US 41 
corridor which the parcel fronts upon has an OC-20 FLU category, with RES-6 and RES-12 FLU categories further to the 
east and west.  The US 41 corridor north and south of the subject site is comprised primarily of commercial uses, with 
residential uses, primarily single-family, located further to the east and west of the US 41 commercial corridor.
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.2 Future Land Use Map

Subject Site Future Land Use Category: OC-20

Maximum Density/F.A.R.: 20 units per acre/.75 FAR

Typical Uses: Community commercial type uses, office uses, mixed use developments 
and compatible residential uses.
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.3 Immediate Area Map

Adjacent Zonings and Uses

Location: Zoning:

Maximum 
Density/F.A.R. 

Permitted by Zoning 
District:

Allowable Use: Existing Use:

North RTC-1 20 unit per acre/.75 FAR Limited General Commercial 
Uses and Multi-Family Commercial

South RTC-1 20 unit per acre/.75 FAR Limited General Commercial 
Uses and Multi-Family Commercial

East RTC-1 20 unit per acre/.75 FAR Limited General Commercial 
Uses and Multi-Family Vacant

West RTC-1 20 unit per acre/.75 FAR Limited General Commercial 
Uses and Multi-Family Vacant
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.4 Proposed Site Plan (partial provided below for size and orientation purposes. See Section 8.0 for full site plan)



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady 

Page 6 of 18



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798 
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022 
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady   

  

Page 7 of 18 

4.0 ADDITIONAL SITE INFORMATION & AGENCY COMMENTS SUMMARY  

INFORMATION/REVIEWING AGENCY  
 

   
 

Environmental: Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 

Environmental Protection Commission   Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No  

 Yes 
 No 

 

Natural Resources  Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 
 

Conservation & Environ. Lands Mgmt.  Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 
 

Check if Applicable: 
 Wetlands/Other Surface Waters         
 Use of Environmentally Sensitive Land 

Credit        
 Wellhead Protection Area                       
 Surface Water Resource Protection Area  

 Potable Water Wellfield Protection Area 
 Significant Wildlife Habitat  
 Coastal High Hazard Area 
 Urban/Suburban/Rural Scenic Corridor 
 Adjacent to ELAPP property 
 Other _________________________ 

Public Facilities:  Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Transportation 

 Design Exc./Adm. Variance Requested  
 Off-site Improvements Provided   

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

See Report 

Service Area/ Water & Wastewater 
Urban     City of Tampa  
Rural        City of Temple Terrace  

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 

Hillsborough County School Board  
Adequate     K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A 
Inadequate  K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 

Impact/Mobility Fees 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan:  Comments 
Received Findings Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Planning Commission  

 Meets Locational Criteria       N/A 
 Locational Criteria Waiver Requested 
 Minimum Density Met            N/A 

 Yes 
 No 

 Inconsistent 
 Consistent 

 Yes 
 No 
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5.0 IMPLEMENTATION RECOMMENDATIONS   
 
5.1 Compatibility  
 
This item was heard at the October 9, 2018 Board of County Commissioner (BOCC) Land Use Meeting and was remanded 
back to the Zoning Hearing Master (ZHM) public hearing by the BOCC for further review/discussion with representatives 
of the Ruskin community.  The applicant has not made any changes to the use requested.  A revised plan was submitted 
subsequent to the remand which added cross access along the western boundary, relocated parking to accommodate 
the cross access and added a notation regarding the provision of an 8 foot right-of-way preservation area along W. Shell 
Point Road. 
 
Per LDC Section 3.17.03.A., Designation of Streets, West Shell Point Road and North US Highway 41 are established as 
main streets, both of these streets which the subject property fronts and serve as its north and eastern property 
boundaries (see graphic to the left).  Per the request, while the applicant has shown they can comply with some of the 
design standards of the established zoning district, they cannot meet some of the key standards found under LDC Section 
3.17.03, General Development Standards and LDC Section 3.17.04, Standards for Non-Residential, Mixed Use and Multi-
Family Development.  Specifically, under these sections, the request cannot meet the design standards pertaining to off-
street parking (surface parking lots) for projects located on Main Streets, minimum building frontages and building 
design.  Therefore, the applicant is seeking relief from these standards and has proposed alternative design 
enhancements to address non-compliance with those standards.  However, staff is not supportive a waiving these key 
design standards of the LDC.     
 
Development Services staff finds the proposed rezoning is inconsistent with the development pattern in the area.  Per 
Land Development Code (LDC) Section 3.17.09.h., Prohibited Uses, of the Ruskin Town Center, Motor Vehicle Sales, 
Rentals, and Auctions—All Types is not a permitted use within any of the special zoning districts established under the 
development regulations of the Ruskin Town Center.  Furthermore, the Ruskin Town Center prohibits other auto 
dependent uses such as motor vehicle repairs, recreational vehicle sales, convenience stores with fuel pumps and mini-
warehouses. 
 
Uses adjacent to, and in the general vicinity of, the site are zoned Ruskin Town Center (RTC-1) and are either permitted 
uses found under the CG (Commercial, General) zoning district, per LDC Section 3.17.07., or are in compliance with LDC 
Section 3.17.00. Consistent with the intent of the RTC-1 zoning district, existing uses do not include commercial/auto 
dependent uses prohibited by the RTC-1 district. 
 
Shell Point Road resides adjacent and north of the site with commercial uses across the street.  A commercial restaurant, 
resides adjacent and south of the site.  US Highway 41 resides adjacent and east of the site.  Commercial uses, including 
a Family Dollar, reside across the road.  A vacant lot with a shed on it resides adjacent and west of the site.  The 
aforementioned Family Dollar is located 175 +/- feet southeast of the subject property at 37 North US Highway 41 (folio 
number 56740.0000) and zoned RTC-1.   
 
The building was constructed in 2015 and met the design standards of the Ruskin Town Center special zoning district 
(see site photo below), with the exception of a site yard setback reduction from 5 to 0 feet granted via Variance 14-0580. 
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Given the established development pattern of the area which consists of uses consistent with the intent/requirements 
of the RTC-1 district, staff does not find the proposed motor vehicle sales use compatible. 
 
5.2 Recommendation      
Based on the above considerations, finds the request not supportable.   
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6.0 PROPOSED CONDITIONS  
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Zoning Administrator Sign Off:  

J. Brian Grady
Mon May  9 2022 12:40:34  

SITE, SUBDIVISION AND BUILDING CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
& BUILDING REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  
Approval of this re-zoning petition by Hillsborough County does not constitute a guarantee that the project will receive 
approvals/permits necessary for site development as proposed will be issued, nor does it imply that other required permits needed 
for site development or building construction are being waived or otherwise approved.  The project will be required to comply 
with the Site Development Plan Review approval process in addition to obtain all necessary building permits for on-site structures.  
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7.0 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND/OR GRAPHICS 
  
None.  
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8.0 PROPOSED SITE PLAN (FULL)
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9.0 FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT (see following pages) 
 
 
  



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798 
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022 
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady   

  

Page 14 of 18 

 
 
 
 



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady 

Page 15 of 18



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798 
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022 
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady   

  

Page 16 of 18 

 
 
 
 



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady 

Page 17 of 18



APPLICATION NUMBER: PD 18-0798
ZHM HEARING DATE: May 16, 2022
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: July 26, 2022 Case Reviewer: J. Brian Grady 

Page 18 of 18











































Unincorporated Hillsborough County Rezoning 

Hearing Date: 
May 16, 2022

Report Prepared:
May 4, 2022

Petition: PD 18-0798 (Remand) 

108 North US Highway 41

Southwest Quadrant of Shell Point Road and US 
Highway 41 

Summary Data:

Comprehensive Plan Finding: INCONSISTENT

Adopted Future Land Use: Office Commercial-20 (20 du/ac; 0.75 FAR)

Service Area Urban

Community Plan: Ruskin, SouthShore Areawide Systems

Requested Rezoning: Ruskin Town Center-1 (RTC-1) to a Planned
Development (PD) to allow the existing vehicle sales 
business and other permitted RTC-1 uses

Parcel Size (Approx.): 0.52± acres 

Street Functional
Classification: 

Shellpoint Road – Collector
US Highway 41 –Arterial

Locational Criteria N/A

Evacuation Zone The subject property is located within Evacuation 
Zone APlan Hillsborough

planhillsborough.org
planner@plancom.org

813 – 272 – 5940
601 E Kennedy Blvd

18th floor 
Tampa, FL, 33602
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Context 
 The applicant is requesting a rezoning from Ruskin Town Center-1 (RTC-1) to a Planned 

Development (PD) to allow an existing vehicle sales business and other permitted RTC-1 
uses.  

 
 The .52± acre site is located at the southwest corner of US Highway 41 and Shell Point 

Road within the Urban Service Area, the Coastal High Hazard Area and is within the limits 
of both the Ruskin Community Plan and the SouthShore Areawide Systems Plan. Per the 
Ruskin Community Plan, the site is located within Ruskin Town Center –1. 
 

 The subject property and surrounding properties have a Future Land Use designation of 
Office Commercial (OC-20), which includes typical uses such as community commercial 
type uses, office uses, mixed use developments, and compatible residential uses. The 
Ruskin Town Center-1 (RTC-1) zoning district surrounds the site, further west the zoning 
designations are Planned Developments (PD), Residential-Duplex Conventional-12 
(RDC-12) and Residential Single Family Conventional-6 (RSC-6).  
 

 The applicant requested a remand of PD 18-0798 at the October 9, 2018, Board of County 
Commissioners Land Use Hearing meeting.  The Board approved this remand to be sent 
to the November 19, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master (ZHM) meeting for reconsideration. 
The BOCC approved a second remand at their December 20, 2019, land use hearing to 
go before the ZHM on January 21, 2020, ZHM. This remand was to address the Ruskin 
Community Profile. Since then, this application has been out of order several times and 
subsequently been continued by the applicant until now.   
 

Compliance with Comprehensive Plan: 
The following Goals, Objectives and Policies apply to this Planned Development request and are 
used as a basis for an inconsistency finding. 
 
Future Land Use Element 
 
URBAN SERVICE AREA USA) 

Objective 1: Hillsborough County shall pro-actively direct new growth into the urban service area 
with the goal that at least 80% of all population growth will occur within the USA during the 
planning horizon of this Plan.  Within the Urban Service Area, Hillsborough County will not impede 
agriculture. Building permit activity and other similar measures will be used to evaluate this 
objective.   

Policy 1.4: Compatibility is defined as the characteristics of different uses or activities or design 
which allow them to be located near or adjacent to each other in harmony. Some elements 
affecting compatibility include the following: height, scale, mass and bulk of structures, pedestrian 
or vehicular traffic, circulation, access and parking impacts, landscaping, lighting, noise, odor and 
architecture. Compatibility does not mean “the same as.” Rather, it refers to the sensitivity of 
development proposals in maintaining the character of existing development. 
 
Policy 9.2: Developments must meet or exceed the requirements of all land development 
regulations as established and adopted by Hillsborough County, the state of Florida and the 
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federal government unless such requirements have been previously waived by those 
governmental bodies. 
 
Policy 16.3:  Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses 
through: 

a) the creation of like uses; or 
b) creation of complementary uses; or 
c) mitigation of adverse impacts; and 
d) transportation/pedestrian connections 

 
Discouraging Strip Commercial Development  
 
Objective 23: To maintain the vehicular capacity of public roads, the County discourages linear 
("strip") non-residential development patterns and the multiple access points which accompany 
such linear neighborhood serving commercial development. 
 
Objective 25:  The County shall implement commercial redevelopment strategies to concentrate 
commercial uses, revitalize older commercial areas, and encourage mixed use projects that 
include commercial development. 
 
Community Design Component 
5.0 NEIGHBORHOOD LEVEL DESIGN 
5.1 COMPATIBILITY 
 
GOAL 12: Design neighborhoods which are related to the predominant character of the 
surroundings. 
 
OBJECTIVE 12-1: New developments should recognize the existing community and be designed 
in a way that is compatible (as defined in FLUE policy 1.4) with the established character of the 
surrounding neighborhood. 
 
LIVABLE COMMUNITIES ELEMENT – RUSKIN COMMUNITY PLAN 
 
Goal 1: Downtown Ruskin – Revitalize Ruskin’s business center along US 41, enhance the 
appearance of the district, and promote business growth that is compatible with our small-town 
community. 
 
 Strategies: 

 Establish a mixed-use, walkable and pedestrian friendly Town Center. 
 Develop and implement the Master Plan for the Ruskin Town Center. 
 Develop common design and landscape standards for commercial development 

along US 41 outside the Town Center. 
 Upgrade the current sewer system to facilitate redevelopment of the business 

center and Town Center. 
 Ensure that improvements to US 41 are compatible with the revitalization of 

Ruskin’s historic business center.  Seek alternatives to expansion of US 41.  
 Limit US 41 to two through lanes in each direction. 
 Develop 2nd and 3rd Streets as a local alternative to US 41 with direct 

connection to US 41. 
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 Encourage commercial development and redevelopment within downtown Ruskin 
and the Town Center and direct commercial development away from Shell Point 
Road West and 19th Avenue N.W. 

 Encourage locally owned businesses to locate within Ruskin’s historic business 
corridor and Town Center. 

 Establish gateways, located to provide a sense of arrival. 
 
Goal 2.  Economic Development – Provide opportunities for business growth and jobs in the 
Ruskin community. 

 Promote commercial development at a scale and design that reflects the character 
of the community.  Ensure that future commercial development avoids “strip” 
development patterns. 

 
Staff Analysis of Goals, Objectives, and Policies: 
The subject site is approximately 0.52 acres and is located at the southwest corner of Shell 
Point Road and US Highway 41.  The site is developed with a motor vehicle sales business 
consisting of a 1,848 square foot building and inventory displayed mainly along the 
frontage of Shell Point Road and US Highway 41. The site is designated Office Commercial-
20 on the Future Land use map with a maximum floor area ratio of .75. The surrounding 
uses in the area include a fast food restaurant to the south, vacant parcels to the west and 
east, and a real estate office north of the site. The rezoning request is to change the Ruskin 
Town Center-1 (RTC-1) zoning district to a Planned Development (PD) to recognize the 
existing motor vehicle sales business and allow other RTC-1 permitted uses. It should be 
noted that the site underwent a zoning verification in 2014, and it was determined by the 
Development Services Department that the site failed to establish that motor vehicle sales 
was an “existing lawful use” at the time of the establishment of the Ruskin Town Center-1 
zoning district.  
 
Policy 9.2 of the Future Land Use Element states that developments must meet or exceed 
land development regulations.  As demonstrated on the site plan, the request does not 
meet the intent of this policy.  
 
The site is located within the limits of the Ruskin Community Plan and within the Ruskin 
Downtown.  There is specific language within the Community Plan (Goal 1 and 2) that 
expresses how development within the downtown should be designed. As the parking 
fronts the site and is a dominate portion of the site, it creates the look of strip commercial 
development. Objective 23 of the Future Land Use element as well as the Ruskin 
Community Plan discourages strip commercial development. 
 
This second remand was granted by the Board of County Commission for the purpose of 
considering the Ruskin Community Plan Profile. Planning Commission acknowledges that 
the Ruskin Community Plan Profile was completed, however, due to the fact that the 
Ruskin Community Plan Profile is not an adopted document, Planning Commission staff 
cannot use the document in their analysis in making land development recommendations.  
 
The applicant did attempt to make changes to address the design of the site to further the 
intent of the Ruskin Community Plan. Fences within the RTC-1 area are to be made of 
masonry or vinyl or cast iron, and the applicant has agreed to remove the chain link fence 
that is currently on the site.  The applicant is also providing additional screening and an 
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awning above the cars along Shell Point Road and US Highway 41 to reduce the 
appearance of the display of cars.  
 
Though the applicant is providing increased screening along the frontage of the site, and 
also screening the waste storage and mechanical equipment, the proposed design of the 
site is still too much of a deviation from the Ruskin Community Plan. Therefore, it is 
inconsistent with the vision of the Community Plan for this area. 
 
Recommendation 
Based upon the above considerations, Planning Commission staff finds the proposed Planned 
Development INCONSISTENT with the Future of Hillsborough Comprehensive Plan for 
Unincorporated Hillsborough County.  
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APPLICANT 
PROPOSED

CONDITIONS



FINAL CONDITIONS 
OF APPROVAL 

PETITION NUMBER: RZ 18-0798 
MEETING DATE: October 9, 20 18 

Approval, subject to the condit ions li sted below, is based on the general si te plan submitted July 3 1, 20 18. 

I. The project shall be limited to a max imum of 5,000 square feet of RTC- 1 zoning district pennitted 
uses and/or motor vehicle sales (new and used). 

2. Notwithstanding that auto repair has been detenni ned to be an existing lawful use under LDC Section 
3. 17.02(A), auto repair shall be a prohibited use. 

3. If the property were redeveloped or occupied by a use other than the ex isting motor vehicle sales use, 
compliance with Section 3. 17.00, Ruski n Town Center Development Regulati ons, Hillsborough 
County Land Developmen t Code, shall be requ ired, as applicable, and the fo llowing additional 
conditions shall apply: 

3.1 Unless otherwise approved through the LDC 6.04.02 .B. Administrat ive Va ri ance process, a cross 
access to the western parcel (Fo lio 055807 .0 I 00) shall be required. 

3.2 As Shellpoint Road is shown on the Hillsborough County Corridor Preservation Plan as a fu ture 
2-lane enhanced roadway, the developer shall preserve up to 8 feet of right-of-way along its 
Shellpoint Road frontage for future improvements, such that a minimum of 38 feet of ri ght-of
way is preserved south of the existing right-of-way line centerline. Only those interim uses 
allowed by the Hillsborough County Land Development Code shall be penni tted with in the 
proposed right-of-way . The ri ght-of-way preservation area shall be shown on all futu re site plans 
and building setbacks shall be calculated from the fut ure right-of-way line. 

4. The existing motor veh icle sales use shal l comply wi th Section 3.17.00, Hillsborough County Land 
Development Code, unless otherwise stated herein or noted/illustra ted on the approved genera l site 
plan. 

5. The following development standards shall apply to the existing motor vehicle sales use and shall 
supersede any conflicting development regulations in Section 3 .17 .00, Hillsborough County Land 
Development Code, relating to the same: 

5. 1 Off-street parking (surface parking lots) . Off-street parking and parking for sales inventory shall 

be as depicted on the approved general site plan. 

5.2 Landscaping and buffering requ irements for off-street vehicular use areas shall be as outlined on 

the approved general site plan. 

5.3 Building Orientat ion. The primary building entrance(s) shall be visible and accessible from a 

public street. 

5.4 Building frontages, minimum building setbacks and dimensional standards shall be as illustrated 

and/or noted on the approved general site plan . Maximum front yard build ing setbacks shall not 

apply. 



5.5 Building Fa9ade. Ground floor retai l uses that are located in non-residential or mixed use 

structures and that are located on a comer parcel and have two street frontages shall contain 

storefront display windows covering a minimum of 40 percent and a maximum of 80 percent of a 

storefront's linear frontage along one of the streets and a minimum of 20 percent and a maximum 

of 60 percent of a storefront's linear fron tage along the other street. 

5.6 Ground/Monument Sign Setbacks. Signs shall be set back a minimum of ten feet from the public 

right-of-way, 20 feet from the intersection right-of-way lines and shall meet any additional 

setback required in Article VII, Hillsborough County Land Development Code. Additionally, 

sight distance and roadside clear zones must be in accordance with the criteria of the 

Hillsborough County Transportation Technical Manual. 

6. If the notes and/or graphics on the site plan are in conflict with specific zoning conditions and/or the 
Land Development Code (LDC) regulations, the more restrictive regulation shall apply, unless 
specifica lly condit ioned otherwise. References to development standards of the LDC in the above 
stated conditions shall be interpreted as the regulations in effect at the time of preliminary site 
plan/plat approval. 

7. Development of the project shall proceed in strict accordance wi th the tenns and conditions contained 
in the Development Order, the General Site Plan, the land use conditions contained herein, and all 
applicable rules, regulations and ordinances of Hillsborough Coun ty. 

8. Prior to approval by the Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners at the scheduled Land 
Use Meeting, the applicant shall submit to the Development Services Department a revised General 
Site Plan for certification which confonns the notes and graphic of the plan to the conditions outlined 
above, the Land Development Code (LDC) and/or recommendations of the Land Use Hearing 
Officer. The revised general site plan shall be certified upon approval of the petition at the scheduled 
Board of County Commissioners Land Use Meeting. Prior to the conditi ons of approval and 
certification , if it is detennined the certified plan does not accurately reflect the conditions of 
approval, the requirements of the LDC and/or the recommendations of the Land Use Hearing Officer, 
as may be modified at the Board of County Commissioners Land Use Hearing Meeting, said plan will 
be deemed invalid and revised plan (and approval of the petition) sha ll occur at the next available 
Board of County Commissioners Land Use Meeting. The submittal deadline for the revised General 
Site Plan under all of the above scenarios shall be the deadline for the filing of Oral Argument. 



 
 
 

GENERAL 

SITE PLAN 

FOR  

CERTIFICATION 



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
PO Box 1110, Tampa, FL 33601 1110
(813) 272 5600

HCFLGOV.NET

BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

Harry Cohen
Ken Hagan
Pat Kemp

Gwendolyn "Gwen" Myers
Kimberly Overman

Mariella Smith
Stacy R. White

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
Bonnie M. Wise

COUNTY ATTORNEY
Christine M. Beck

INTERNAL AUDITOR
Peggy Caskey

DEPUTY COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
Gregory S. Horwedel

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

GENERAL SITE PLAN REVIEW/CERTIFICATION

Project Name:______________________________________________________

Zoning File:_____________________ Modification:________________________

Atlas Page:_____________________ Submitted:__________________________

To Planner for Review:___________ Date Due:___________________________

Contact Person:_________________ Phone:______________________________

Right Of Way or Land Required for Dedication: Yes No

( ) The Development Services Department HAS NO OBJECTION to this General Site Plan.

( ) The Development Services Department RECOMMENDS DISAPPROVAL of this General
Site Plan for the following reasons:

Reviewed by:___________________________________ Date:_______________

Date Agent/Owner notified of Disapproval:_______________________________

RZ-PD 18-0798

Car Credit Ruskin

None

None 06/14/22

06/21/22
Mark Bentley, Esq. 813-225-2500/ markb@pfirm.com

✔

✔

J. Brian Grady 7/12/22
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AGENCY 

COMMENTS



Transportation Review Comments                                                                                                                 Page 1 of 2 
 

AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO: Zoning Technician, Development Services Department DATE: 7.31.2018 
Revised: 1.3.2019 

REVIEWER: Aiah Yassin, AICP, MSEM AGENCY/DEPT: Transportation  
PLANNING AREA/SECTOR: Ruskin/South PETITION NO.: PD 18-0798 

 

 

  This agency has no comments. 
 

  This agency has no objection. 
 

X  This agency has no objection, subject to the listed or attached conditions. 
 

GENERAL REPORT OUTLINE: 
 

I. REPORT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS 

 Hillsborough County eliminated its concurrency management system and enacted a transportation 
mobility fee which went into effect on January 1, 2017.  This new fee replaced concurrency and 
impact fees. The applicant will mitigate transportation impacts by payment of the mobility fee. 

 The proposed rezoning would result in no change in the trips potentially generated since the 
proposed use is less intense that what is already allowable under RTC-1.  

 Only one primary vehicular and pedestrian access will be on Shell Point Road. Additional access 
will not be allowed on US.41, subject to FDOT approval. 

 The developer will be required to construct a 5-foot sidewalk along frontage on Shell Point Rd. 

 Transportation Review Section staff has no objection to the proposed rezoning. 
 

II. CONDITIONS OF ZONING APPROVAL 
 

1. Notwithstanding anything on the PD site plan or herein these conditions to the contrary, the 
applicant will be required to comply with all applicable access management standards and 
other applicable regulations within the Land Development Code and Transportation Technical 
Manual. 

 
2. As Shellpoint Rd. is shown on the Hillsborough County Corridor Preservation Plan as a 

future 2-lane enhanced roadway, the developer shall preserve up to 8 feet of right-of-way 
along its Shellpoint Rd frontage for future improvements, such that a minimum of 38 feet of 
right-of-way is preserved south of the existing right-of-way centerline.  Only those interim 
uses allowed by the Hillsborough County Land Development Code shall be permitted 
within the preserved right-of- way.  The right-of-way preservation area shall be shown on 
all future site plans, and building setbacks shall be calculated from the future right-of-way 
line. 
 

3. The developer shall construct a vehicular and pedestrian cross access stub out to its western 
property boundary (Folio 55807.0100) and to its southern property boundary (folio 
55803.0000).  
 

 
 
 

 



Transportation Review Comments                                                                                                                 Page 2 of 2 
 

III. PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone +/- 0.52 acres property (folio 55805.0000) from RTC-1 to Planned 
Development (PD) to recognize the existing motor vehicle sales use as a permitted use, as well as to 
permit any of the uses otherwise permitted in the RTC-1 zoning district.  

 
IV. TRANSPORTATION ANALYSIS: 

 Trip Generation Analysis: 
 
As provided for in the Development Review Procedures Manual (DRPM), the applicant submitted a letter 
indicating that the proposed development does not trigger the threshold whereby a transportation analysis 
is required to process this rezoning. Since the proposed zoning is less intense in generating trips that is 
allowed on under RTC-1 and the request still entails the same uses under RTC-1 to remain, then Staff can 
conclude that no change in the trip generation is anticipated. Staff’s analysis is summarized below. 
Proposed Uses: 

Land Use/Size 24 Hour Two-
Way Volume 

Total Peak   
Hour Trips 
AM PM 

2,000 SF of Automobile Sales (Used) (ITE Code: 841) 54 5 11 
 

 Transportation Infrastructure Analysis: 
 
The subject parcel to be rezoned is located at South West corner of the intersection on Shell Point Road 
and U.S 41 in Ruskin. Only one access is allowed on Shell Point Road.  
 
Shell Point Rd is a 2-lane, undivided, collector roadway characterized by +/- 12 foot travel lanes. There are 
no sidewalk on the side of the project. No bike lanes Shell Point Rd in the vicinity of the proposed project.  
Adjacent to the project site, Shell Point Road lies within a +/- 64 foot wide right-of-way. The developer 
will be required to construct a 5-foot sidewalk along frontage on Shell Point Rd. 
 
Shell Point Rd is identified on the Hillsborough Corridor Preservation Map as a 2 lane enhanced road which 
makes the standard Right of Way width needed 64 Ft + 12 Ft= 76 ft. As Shellpoint Rd. is shown on the 
Hillsborough County Corridor Preservation Plan as a future 2-lane enhanced roadway, the developer shall 
preserve up to 8 feet of right-of-way along its Shellpoint Rd frontage for future improvements, such that 
a minimum of 38 feet of right-of-way is preserved south of the existing right-of-way centerline.  Only 
those interim uses allowed by the Hillsborough County Land Development Code shall be permitted within 
the preserved right-of- way.  The right-of-way preservation area shall be shown on all future site plans, 
and building setbacks shall be calculated from the future right-of-way line. 
 

 Site Access Analysis: 
 

Primary vehicular and pedestrian access to the site will be from the existing driveway on Shell Point Rd. 
Second exiting access on Shell Point Rd will be closed. No access is proposed on U.S 41.  
  
No turn lanes are warranted based on the trip generation and trip distribution.  



Transportation Comment Sheet  
 

 

 

3.0 TRANSPORTATION SUMMARY (FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT IN SECTION 9 OF STAFF REPORT)  
Adjoining Roadways (check if applicable) 
Road Name Classification Current Conditions Select Future Improvements 

Shell Point Rd. County Collector 
- Urban 

2 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan   
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other   

Project Trip Generation  Not applicable for this request 
 Average Annual Daily Trips A.M. Peak Hour Trips P.M. Peak Hour Trips 
Proposed 54 5 11 
*Trips reported are based on net new external trips unless otherwise noted.  
 
Connectivity and Cross Access  Not applicable for this request 

Project Boundary Primary Access Additional 
Connectivity/Access Cross Access Finding 

North X None None Meets LDC 
South  None None Meets LDC 
East  None None Meets LDC 
West X None None Meets LDC 
Notes:  
 
Design Exception/Administrative Variance   Not applicable for this request 
Road Name/Nature of Request Type Finding 
 Choose an item. Choose an item. 
Notes: 

4.0 Additional Site Information & Agency Comments Summary  

Transportation Objections Conditions 
Requested 

Additional 
Information/Comments 

 Design Exception/Adm. Variance Requested 
 Off-Site Improvements Provided 

 Yes  N/A 
 No 

 Yes 
 No See report. 



 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSION  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Lesley “Les” Miller, Jr., Chair  
Victor D. Crist, Vice-Chair 

Janet L. Dougherty 

 DIVISION DIRECTORS 
Ken Hagan Hooshang Boostani, P.E. 
Al Higginbotham Sam Elrabi, P.E. 
Pat Kemp Andy Schipfer, P.E. 
Sandra L. Murman Richard Tschantz, Esq. 
Stacy White  Sterlin Woodard, P.E. 

 

Environmental Excellence in a Changing World 
Roger P. Stewart Center 

3629 Queen Palm Drive, Tampa, FL  33619   -   (813) 627-2600   -   www.epchc.org 
 

AGENCY COMMENT SHEET 
 

REZONING 

HEARING DATE: July 16, 2018 

PETITION NO.: 18-0798 

EPC REVIEWER: Rose O’Donovan 

CONTACT INFORMATION: (813) 627-2600 
X1360 

EMAIL:  odonovanr@epchc.org 

COMMENT DATE: May 17, 2018 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 108 N 41 Hwy, Ruskin 

FOLIO #: 055805-0000 

STR: 08-32S-19E 

REQUESTED ZONING: RTC-1 to PD 
 

FINDINGS 
WETLANDS PRESENT NO 
SITE INSPECTION DATE Aerial Review 
WETLAND LINE VALIDITY N/A 
WETLANDS VERIFICATION (AERIAL PHOTO, 
SOILS SURVEY, EPC FILES) 

N/A 

INFORMATIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
Wetlands Management Division staff of the Environmental Protection Commission of Hillsborough 
County (EPC) reviewed aerials of the above referenced site in order to determine the extent of any 
wetlands and other surface waters pursuant to Chapter 1-11, Rules of the EPC.  The aerial review 
revealed that no wetlands or other surface waters exist within the above referenced parcel. 
 
Please be advised this wetland determination is informal and non-binding. A formal wetland 
delineation may be applied for by submitting a “WDR30 - Delineation Request Application”. 
Once approved, the formal wetland delineation would be binding for five years. 
 

 
Reo/mst 



           AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET

NOTE: THIS IS ONLY FOR ESTIMATE PURPOSES, BASED ON THE FEES AT THE TIME THE REVIEW WAS 
MADE. ACTUAL FEES WILL BE ASSESSED BASED ON PERMIT APPLICATIONS RECEIVED AND BASED ON 
THE FEE SCHEDULE AT THE TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION. 

TO: DATE:

REVIEWER:

APPLICANT: PETITION NO:

LOCATION:

FOLIO NO:

Estimated Fees:

Project Summary/Description:

Zoning Review, Development Services

Ron Barnes, Impact & Mobility Fee Coordinator

Johnson Pope Bokor Ruppel & Burns LLP

108 N Hwy 41

055805.0000

04/05/2022

18-0798

(Various use types allowed. Estimates are a sample of potential development) 
Industrial                                 Retail - Shopping Center                 Warehouse 
(Per 1,000 s.f.)                        (Per 1,000 s.f.)                                  (Per 1,000 s.f.) 
Mobility: $3,807.00               Mobility: $12,206.00                       Mobility: $1,239.00 
Fire: $57.00                             Fire: $313.00                                    Fire: $34.00 

Retail - Fast Food w/Drive Thru     Multi-Family (1-2 story, 1,200 s.f.) 
(Per 1,000 s.f.)                                  Per Unit 
Mobility: $94,045.00                       Mobility: $5,995 
Fire: $313.00                                     Parks: $1,555 
                                                             School: $3,891 
                                                             Fire: $249 

Urban Mobility, South Fire - Commercial General - non-specific; and Multi-Family units (no 
quantity specified)



AGENCY COMMENT SHEET 

TO: Zoning/Code Administration, Development Services Department

FROM: Reviewer: Joe Gross   Date:  August 13, 2018 

Agency: Natural Resources  Petition #: RZ-18-0798

(X) This agency has no objections

(  ) This agency has no objections, subject to listed or attached conditions 

  (  ) This agency objects, based on the listed or attached issues.

1. The planting of required trees shall be sensitive to overhead electric utility 
lines.  Trees that exceed a mature, overall height of 20 feet shall not be 
planted within 30 feet of an existing or proposed overhead electric utility line. 



AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO:  ZONING TECHNICIAN, Planning Growth Management DATE: 4 May 2018 

REVIEWER:   Bernard W. Kaiser, Conservation and Environmental Lands Management 

APPLICANT:   Mark Bentley PETITION NO:  RZ PD 18-0798 

LOCATION:   108 N US HWY 41, Ruskin, FL  33570 

FOLIO NO:   55805.0000 SEC: 08   TWN: 32   RNG: 19 
 

 

 

  This agency has no comments. 

 

  This agency has no objection. 

 

 This agency has no objection, subject to listed or attached conditions. 

 

 This agency objects, based on the listed or attached conditions. 

   

COMMENTS:        . 

 
 



Hillsborough Area Regional Transit Authority (HART)
AGENCY COMMENT SHEET

TO: ZONING TECHNICIAN, Hillsborough County Development Services

FROM: Linda Walker Date:  May 2, 2018

PETITION NO.: RZ18-0798 Mobility Fee Benefit District: 4

PROPOSED PROJECT:   Cuculich Property

GENERAL LOCATION: Bordered by US 41, Shell Point Rd, 1st St NW, & 1st Ave NW

Folio No.: 55805-00000

This agency has no comment.

This agency has no objections.

This agency has no objections, subject to listed or attached conditions.

This agency objects, based on the listed or attached issues.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION SERVING THE LOCATION

Route(s)

Route 31- South Hillsborough County (Westfield Brandon Town Center to Ruskin)

Nearest Transit Corridor(s): U.S. Hwy 41

Distance to the nearest Stop Location/ Park and Ride: The nearest stop is 18 yards on the SEC US 
Hwy 41 & Shell Point Road.   The Apollo Beach –Winn Dixie Park-N- Ride is approximately 2.6 miles away 
at the Southshore Regional Service Center- 410 30th Street.

ACCESSIBILITY TO PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION/ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION

No Objection. - HART concurs with the Hillsborough County Land Development Code requirements for 
pedestrian/ADA travel.
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             HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
             BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

------------------------------X
                              )
IN RE:                        )
                              )
ZONE HEARING MASTER           )
HEARINGS                      )
                              )
------------------------------X

             ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
        TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS

     BEFORE:       SUSAN FINCH
                   Land Use Hearing Master

     DATE:         Monday, March 15, 2021

     TIME:         Commencing at 6:00 p.m.
                   Concluding at 10:35 p.m.

     PLACE:        Webex Videoconference

                     Reported By:

                Christina M. Walsh, RPR
              Executive Reporting Service
               Ulmerton Business Center
           13555 Automobile Blvd., Suite 100
                 Clearwater, FL 33762
                    (800) 337-7740
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1      be amended on the agenda.

2            The other change is a similar change to page

3      6, item C-3, Rezoning Standard 21-0242.  Like the

4      previous one, there was -- it's shown on the agenda

5      as a requested CG zoning, and the applicant has

6      offered restrictions.  So it's actually

7      CG-Restricted zoning district.

8            Those are the only two changes on the

9      agenda.  I'll now go through the published

10      withdrawals and continuances beginning on page 4 of

11      the agenda.

12            The first item is Rezoning-PD 18-0798.  This

13      application is out of order to be heard and is

14      being continued to the June 14th, 2021, Zoning

15      Hearing Master Hearing.

16            Item A-2, Major Mod 19-0521.  This

17      application is out of order to be heard and is

18      being continued to the April 19th, 2021, Zoning

19      Hearing Master Hearing.

20            Item A-3, Rezoning-PD 19-1458.  This

21      application is out of order to be heard and is

22      being continued to the April 19th, 2021, Zoning

23      Hearing Master Hearing.

24            Item A-4, Major Mod Application 20-0290.

25      This application is being withdrawn from the Zoning
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             HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
             BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

------------------------------X
                              )
IN RE:                        )
                              )
ZONE HEARING MASTER           )
HEARINGS                      )
                              )
------------------------------X

             ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
        TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS

     BEFORE:       PAMELA JO HATLEY
                   Land Use Hearing Master

     DATE:         Monday, December 14, 2020

     TIME:         Commencing at 6:00 p.m.
                   Concluding at 8:36 p.m.

     PLACE:        Appeared via Webex videoconference

                     Reported By:

                Christina M. Walsh, RPR
              Executive Reporting Service
               Ulmerton Business Center
           13555 Automobile Blvd., Suite 100
                 Clearwater, FL 33762
                    (800) 337-7740
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1            HEARING MASTER HATLEY:  Thank you.

2            Item 20-1248 is continued to January 19th,

3      2021.

4            MR. GRADY:  All right.  That concludes the

5      changes to the published agenda.  I will now go

6      through the published withdrawals and continuances

7      beginning on page 4 of the agenda.

8            Item A-1, Rezoning-PD 18-0798.  This

9      application is out of order to be heard and is

10      being continued to the March 15th, 2021, Zoning

11      Hearing Master Hearing.

12            Item A-2, Major Modification Application

13      19-0521.  This application is out of order to be

14      heard and is being continued to the January 19th,

15      2021, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

16            Item A-3, Rezoning Standard 20-0144.  This

17      application is being withdrawn by the Zoning

18      Administrator in accordance with the LDC

19      Section 10.03.02.C.2.

20            I would note for the record, we've handed

21      out a change to this blurb.  The continuance notice

22      in the backup referenced the wrong petition number.

23      So we've corrected the petition of the correctly

24      referenced 20-0144.

25            Item A-4, Major Mod Application 20-0290.
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              HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
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                              )
                              )
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ZONING HEARING MASTER (ZHM)   )
HEARING                       )
                              )
                              )
------------------------------X

             ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
        TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS

     BEFORE:       DWIGHT WELLS
                   Zoning Hearing Master

     DATE:         Tuesday, September 29, 2020

     TIME:         Commencing at 6:00 p.m.
                   Concluding at 7:31 p.m.

     PLACE:        Robert W. Saunders, Sr.
                   Public Library
                   Ada T. Payne Community Room
                   1505 N Nebraska Avenue
                   Tampa, Florida 33602

                     Reported By:
              Diane T. Emery, CMRS, FPR
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1                  P R O C E E D I N G S

2           HEARING MASTER WELLS:  Good evening.  We're

3       here for ZHM zoning procedures 2020.  And we do

4       the pledge at this point.

5           (Pledge of Allegiance.)

6           HEARING MASTER WELLS:  Any changes to the

7       agenda?

8           MR. GRADY:  For the record, Brian Grady,

9       Hillsborough County Development Services.  We have

10       no changes to the published agenda, so I'll go

11       through the published withdrawals and continuances

12       beginning on page 4 of the agenda.

13           The first item is item A.1., rezoning PD

14       18-0798.  This application is out of order to be

15       heard and is being continued to the December 14,

16       2020, Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

17           Item A.2., major mod application 20-0290.

18       This application is out of order to be heard and

19       is being continued to the November 16, 2020,

20       Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

21           Item A.3., rezoning PD 20-0307.  This

22       application is being continued by the applicant to

23       the October 19, 2020, Zoning Hearing Master

24       hearing.

25           Item A.4., rezoning standard 20-0334.  This
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                    (800) 337-7740
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1      one.

2            HEARING MASTER SCAROLA:  Okay.  So item D-7

3      is continued to the March 16th.

4            MR. GRADY:  Yes.  And then D-10 is

5      April 13th.

6            That concludes changes to the agenda.  I'll

7      now go through the published withdrawals and

8      continuances beginning on page 5 of the agenda.

9            The first item is item one, Rezoning PD

10      18-0798.  The applicant's Mark Bentley.  The

11      application is out of order to be heard and is

12      being continued to the March 16th, 2020, Zoning

13      Hearing Master Hearing.

14            Item A-2, Rezoning PD 19-1443.  This

15      application is being continued by the applicant to

16      the April 13th, 2020, Zoning Hearing Master

17      Hearing.

18            Item A-3, RZ-PD 19-1451.  This application is

19      being continued by the applicant to the April 13th,

20      2020, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

21            Item A-4, RZ-PD 19-1461.  This application is

22      being continued by the applicant to the March 16th,

23      2020, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

24            Item A-5, Major Mod Application 19-1462.

25      This application is out of order to be heard and is
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1     continuances, beginning on page 5 of the 

2     agenda.

3              The first item is Item A.1, 

4     Rezoning Application 20-0158.  This 

5     application is being withdrawn from the  

6     Zoning Hearing Master process.

7              Item A.2, Rezoning PD 18-0798.  

8     This application is out of order to be heard 

9     and is being continued to the February 18th, 

10     2020, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

11              Item A.3, Rezoning PD 19-0935.  

12     This application is being continued by the 

13     Applicant to the February 18th, 2020, Zoning 

14     Hearing Master Hearing.

15              Item A.4, Rezoning PD 19-1420.  

16     This application is being continued by the 

17     Applicant to the February 18th, 2020, Zoning 

18     Hearing Master Hearing.

19              Item A.5, RZ-PD 19-1421.  This 

20     application is being continued by the 

21     Applicant to the February 18th, 2020, Zoning 

22     Hearing Master Hearing.

23              Item A.6, RZ-PD 19-1443.  This 

24     application is being continued by the 

25     Applicant to the February 18th, 2020, Zoning 
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1              HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
             BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

2

3

4             ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARINGS

5                    OCTOBER 14, 2019

6           ZONING HEARING MASTER:  SUSAN FINCH

7

8 B.1  Application Number:   RZ-PD 18-0798 RU (Remand)

9      Applicant:            Johnson Pope Bokor 
                           Ruppel & Burns, LLP

10                               
     Location:             108 N. Hwy. 41 

11
     Folio Number:         55805.0000

12
     Sec/Twn/Rng:          08/32/19

13
     Acreage:              .52 acres, more or less

14
     Comprehensive Plan:   OC-20

15
     Community Plan Area:  Ruskin

16
     Service Area:         Urban

17
     Existing Zoning:      RTC-1 (07-0517)

18
     Request:              Rezone to Planned Development

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1          MR. GRADY:  The next item is Agenda Item 

2     B.1, Rezoning Application PD 18-0798.  The 

3     Applicant is Johnson Pope Bokor Ruppel & Burns, 

4     LLP.  The request is to rezone from RTC-1 to a 

5     Planned Development.

6              I will provide Staff presentation after 

7     presentation by the Applicant.

8          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  All right.  Is the 

9     Applicant here?  Good evening.

10          MR. BENTLEY:  Good evening, Ms. Finch.  My 

11     name is Mark Bentley, 401 East Jackson Street, 

12     Tampa 33602.  And I have been sworn.  I represent 

13     the property owner, Steven Kuchlich, who is 

14     seeking a rezoning from RTC-1 to PD.

15          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Mr. Bentley, could 

16     you bring the microphone just a little closer?  

17     Perfect.

18          MR. BENTLEY:  Okay.  Can you stop the time a 

19     second?  Before I get started, I just want to go 

20     through the documents that I'm going to submit 

21     into the record.

22              At our last hearing last year I 

23     submitted a composite exhibit.  It had about 30 

24     exhibits.  Okay.  That's already in the record.  

25              I'm going to give you another copy, and 
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1     on the inside of that binder there are going to 

2     be additional documents that I want submitted 

3     into evidence.  They primarily consist of letters 

4     in support and affidavits of people you're going 

5     to hear tonight testify about the history of the 

6     property.  Okay?

7          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Okay.  Perfect.

8          MR. BENTLEY:  So my assistant, Ashley, is 

9     dealing with that.

10          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  She started with 

11     that, yeah.

12          MR. BENTLEY:  So, back to the subject 

13     property.  It consisted of two long-standing land 

14     uses at the property of auto sales, auto repair, 

15     which occurred from 1986 up to the present time.  

16     From '86 to the end of 2012, it was known as 

17     Ted's Auto Center.  It consisted of auto sales 

18     and repair.  

19              However, in 2006 the property was 

20     rezoned RTC by the county, which prohibited the 

21     two land uses at the property of auto sales and 

22     auto repair.  

23              Notably, at no time between the 

24     enactment and the sale of the business in 2012 

25     did the county advise the prior owner that the 
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1     uses were prohibited.  So the point being that 

2     from 2006 until the property was sold at the end 

3     of 2012, there were no issues with respect to 

4     compliance, at least suggested by the county.

5              So prior to filing this Rezoning 

6     Application we were advised by County Staff 

7     representatives that they may have a more 

8     positive perspective on the application if RTC 

9     standards were incorporated, to the extent 

10     possible, into the PD.  Which we did.  And we're 

11     providing you with the Staff pre-submittal 

12     comments in the binder that I just discussed.

13              So our application incorporated RTC 

14     standards that would were required as a PD and 

15     we've done everything short of demolishing and 

16     relocating the existing building in order to 

17     comply.

18              On October 9th, 2018, County Staff 

19     acknowledged our efforts to the Board of County 

20     Commissioners when your recommendation was 

21     presented to the Board.  This is in your backup 

22     materials.  And Mr. Joe Moreda testified as 

23     follows:  That our PD meets many of the RTC 

24     standards.  And I quote Mr. Moreda in front of 

25     the Board.  "In the PD proposal, the Applicant 
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1     from a design perspective doesn't significantly 

2     deviate from the RTC, and their proposal, at 

3     least in our estimation, what it does is it 

4     addresses the existing condition and also 

5     establishes how to deal with that if the use has 

6     changed in the future."

7              Let me stop right there.  What we had 

8     proposed as a condition, which is also an 

9     exhibit, I think Exhibit 20, is that in the event 

10     auto sales ceased, that any redevelopment of the 

11     property would fully comply with the RTC 

12     standard.

13              I go on to quote Mr. Moreda.  "We 

14     believe that element of the proposal that the 

15     Applicant has done a sufficient job of addressing 

16     that, but where we deviate in opinion from the 

17     Applicant is in the issue of use."

18              So as you can see, the Staff advised the 

19     Board that we have sufficiently respected the RTC 

20     and compatibility is not the issue, but the issue 

21     is the actual use being excluded from the RTC.

22              So the real issue is inconsistency with 

23     this RTC Downtown Plan, not incompatibility.  

24              Because when you think about it, 

25     Ms. Finch, auto sales is a permitted use in the 
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1     CG Zoning District, and that's the allowed uses 

2     in the RTC are CG, but for a certain list that 

3     are prohibited, which includes auto sales, 

4     obviously, and auto repair.

5              So regardless how the Staff reports 

6     dance around the issue of compatibility, Staff 

7     will agree, hopefully, I believe, that since auto 

8     sales is a CG use, it is compatible with other CG 

9     uses.  But Staff is opposed, because the use is 

10     prohibited from the RTC.

11              But the problem with this analysis is 

12     that we are seeking a PD to change the use and 

13     opt out and yet be compatible with the 

14     surrounding land uses and the plan.

15              A use can be prohibited from a special 

16     district but designed in a way to be compatible.  

17     If this wasn't a possibility, the Staff would 

18     have advised us that this is prohibited and 

19     wouldn't have encouraged to incorporate RTC 

20     standards and would have probably flat-out 

21     rejected our application.

22              The points I want to -- I intend to 

23     address tonight are, first, our efforts for 

24     community outreach which resulted in more 

25     supporters.  
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1              The new Staff reports or modifications 

2     to the reports discuss issues of concern in your 

3     recommendation to the Board, explain compliance 

4     with the RTC standards.  

5              Our analysis is Exhibit 18, and 

6     demonstrates to what extent we've complied with 

7     the RTC standards.

8              I want to show you and Staff where they 

9     had recommended prohibited uses in Special Zoning 

10     Districts through the PD process, which is 

11     exactly what we are dealing with here.  And we 

12     want to submit zoning conditions which are in the 

13     binder, and enter support documents.

14              So, let's talk about community 

15     involvement.  Since the BOCC hearing, we met 

16     several times with representatives of the Ruskin 

17     Community Foundations.  And I know they're in 

18     attendance tonight and you'll probably hear from 

19     them.  

20              They refused to support the rezoning or 

21     any modification to LDC that would grandfather 

22     the auto sales use in.  They feared, from my 

23     perspective, that a precedent would be 

24     established, even though we agreed to full 

25     compliance with the RTC once auto sales ceased.
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1              RTC has been a dismal failure since its 

2     inception 13 years ago.  Only two projects have 

3     attempted to comply, a new Auto Zone and Family 

4     Dollar.  And neither one could comply with RTC 

5     and had to get multiple variances.  And we have 

6     those in Tab 7, 8 and 9.

7              To the Ruskin Foundation, about 

8     precedent, precedent has been set not necessarily 

9     through the PD process, but through the ambiguous 

10     grandfathering provision that allows any use 

11     lawfully in existence in 2006, which is the 

12     effective date of the RTC, to remain in 

13     perpetuity.  

14              So all these pawn shops, auto repair and 

15     the like will be forever allowed without any 

16     amortization or cessation of use provisions 

17     similar to a typical nonconforming use in Section 

18     11 of the LDC.

19              So they don't have to comply with design 

20     standards either.  This includes auto repair for 

21     our own site.  There hasn't been auto repair for 

22     seven years at our property, but if this 

23     application is denied, that use can come back 

24     without meeting any RTC standards.  It was an 

25     existing lawful use upon the effective date.  And 
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1     that's the County's position.

2              However, if we are -- our PD is 

3     approved, we have agreed to relinquish that 

4     vested right to auto repair.  So essentially the 

5     train's left the station and precedent has been 

6     established.

7              Also note this is an irrefutable fact 

8     that if our project is approved, it would be the 

9     most RTC-compliant redevelopment project in the 

10     RTC's 13 years.  And I'd appreciate it if you 

11     would include that statement, if it's not 

12     refuted, as a finding of fact in your 

13     recommendation to the Board.

14              The project complies with seven of nine 

15     sections under the RTC, almost 80 percent.  And 

16     that's an analysis we provided under Tab 18.  It 

17     was never intended that the enactment of the RTC 

18     would require demolition or relocation of 

19     existing buildings.  The community would have 

20     never agreed to that.

21              I discussed this with Ms. Council and I 

22     think she agreed with my statement I just made.

23              It was to ensure that redevelopment 

24     projects attempt to comply with RTC standards, 

25     like we are attempting to do.  
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1              It's kind of interesting, too, when you 

2     think about it, if a client wanted to convert our 

3     auto repair to a lawyer's office, there is 

4     absolutely nothing in the Code that requires 

5     compliance with the RTC.  I challenge Staff to 

6     show me a Code section that requires compliance.

7              We've also met with several individuals 

8     who support the project and have observed 

9     historically auto sales at the property prior to 

10     my client's purchase in the latter part of 2012.  

11     So these will be affidavits and letters that I 

12     mentioned that will be submitted into the record.

13              I just want to talk about the Staff 

14     report.  Staff fundamentally hasn't really 

15     grasped, with all due respect, that we are zoning 

16     out of the RTC, and so the RTC is really 

17     irrelevant.  

18              For example, on page 2, Staff says the 

19     request is not in compliance with the permitted 

20     uses found under the RTC.  Obviously we realize 

21     that, and that's why we're rezoning the property.

22              The Staff report, Section 1.5, page 3, 

23     entitled "Compatibility" states, "Development 

24     Services Staff finds the proposed rezoning 

25     inconsistent with the development pattern in the 
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1     area."  

2              So my question is, how could this be 

3     true?  All development on page 4 on the graphic 

4     are CG uses, and auto sales is a CG use.

5              Also Staff fails to mention all of the 

6     uses in the area that are now prohibited in the 

7     RTC that can remain in perpetuity and that are 

8     compatible with auto sales, which are auto repair 

9     shops on 41, lawn mower repair, liquor stores, 

10     pawn shops, and others.  

11              So it appears what Staff is apparently 

12     intending to say under the guise of 

13     incompatibility is not that CG use, auto sales, 

14     is incompatible with the surrounding CG uses from 

15     a planning standpoint, but that it is 

16     inconsistent with the RTC plan.

17              Here again, that is not the appropriate 

18     standard when a petition is seeking a PD.  It 

19     should be, "Are the PD uses compatible with what 

20     is around it in terms of character and 

21     intensity?"

22              Staff, I believe, errored also on page 4 

23     when it states that the family dollar constructed 

24     in 2015 met RTC standards.  Obviously, to the 

25     contrary, it didn't, as it failed to -- as it 
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1     filed two Variance Applications to allow 

2     deviations from the RTC standards.  And these are 

3     at Tab 7 and 8.

4              Tab 9 is a new Auto Zone.  The only new 

5     project in 13 years on 41 also needed variances 

6     from the RTC.

7              I'd just like to talk about your prior 

8     recommendation.  You state as a Finding of Fact 

9     on page 8, paragraph 9, that, "The Planned 

10     Development District is intended to provide 

11     flexibility for design and other characteristics 

12     but not to permit uses that are prohibited by 

13     Special Zoning Districts."

14              This was not a fact for the record, but 

15     it appears to be your personal opinion as set 

16     forth as a fact, with all due respect.

17              I also note that Case Number RZ 15-0678, 

18     rezoning from the RDD Special District to PD, you 

19     endorsed a prohibited use through the PD process 

20     and stated in your recommendation that the 

21     prohibited use would be compatible, although 

22     prohibited.  And I'm submitting those documents 

23     to you in your binders.

24              So the point is, a prohibited use can 

25     still be compatible.  We agree with you on that.  
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1     In this point, auto sales can be compatible, 

2     especially when surrounded by other CG uses.

3              Compliance with RTC standards,    

4     Exhibit 18, cases where Staff and the ZHM 

5     recommended prohibited uses in specified zoning 

6     districts via the PD process.  Those are in your 

7     documents in the binder, and the proposed 

8     conditions are at Exhibit 20.

9              We also have letters in support.  I 

10     think at Tab 10 there's one from the property 

11     owner located at the southeast corner of Shell 

12     Point and U.S. 41.  Rolando Santiago. And there 

13     will be other letters of support.  I think 

14     they're in your binder.

15              So the final points I want to make are, 

16     we can rezone to PD without trying to comply with 

17     RTC standards, but we have tried -- And 

18     Mr. Moredo advised the BOCC positively on this 

19     point, about our efforts.

20              Second, precedent has been established 

21     that PD may be used to introduce a prohibited use 

22     into a Special District if it can be designed to 

23     be compatible, like we have done, and like you 

24     have recommended in this prior case I eluded to.

25              Auto repair is sanctioned in perpetuity 
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1     at our client's property, so the residents should 

2     strongly consider this when evaluating our 

3     project, which would be the most RTC-compliant 

4     redevelopment project in the history of that 

5     regulation.

6              In terms of support, as I mentioned, 

7     Mr. Santiago is the property owner located across 

8     the street at the southeast corner.  To the north 

9     is a restaurant, and they're in support.  

10              And the only surrounding property owner 

11     that we're aware of that is opposed is 

12     Ms. Council, who owns the property located 

13     directly east of and contiguous to the subject 

14     property.

15              So I won't get into it now.  I think I 

16     used most of my time.  And he's not here tonight, 

17     but Edwin Harwell, Jr. -- they call him the 

18     "Mayor of Balm" -- he spent a lot of time down 

19     there and he submitted a letter of support 

20     basically saying that he supports the project, 

21     and also that he has bought vehicles from Ted's 

22     when it was in business.  So he's got an 

23     affidavit and a letter in support.

24              And that's it, unless you have any 

25     questions.
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1          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  I do.  Do you -- I 

2     looked through your exhibits, and you were 

3     reading from Mr. Moreda's testimony at the Board 

4     of County Commissioners meeting.  Did you submit 

5     a copy of that transcript, by any chance?

6          MR. BENTLEY:  It was in your backup that I 

7     got from Staff online.  But, Ashley, do we have a 

8     copy we can give?  

9          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  If it's online -- if 

10     you have a copy, that would be great.  If it's 

11     online, I can get it.  If it's in the Optics 

12     system, I can get it.

13          MR. BENTLEY:  Ms. Finch, I think I have it 

14     right here.

15          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  All right.  I'll keep 

16     going while you're looking.

17              So in preparation for this case, I 

18     watched the video of the October 9th hearing.  

19     Because the Staff report says that the   

20     Applicant -- the direction back to the Zoning 

21     Hearing Master was to further review discussion 

22     with representatives of the Ruskin community.  

23              And it sounds like you did that, that 

24     you met with members of the Ruskin community.  So 

25     that's good.  Thank you.
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1              Is this for me?  Okay.  Thank you so 

2     much.  I appreciate it.

3              But the Board -- it was clear from the 

4     motion for denial and some of the comments from 

5     the Board that they were looking for something 

6     other than the car sales lot.  

7              And I understand and saw your testimony 

8     that that was your intent, was to keep the car 

9     sales lot as the use.  Commissioner Murman said, 

10     "I look forward to the 30 other uses that are 

11     permitted in the RTC."

12              So I just want to make sure that I get 

13     that on the record, that it's -- to make sure 

14     that I understand.  It's still your intent to go 

15     with the car sales use.

16          MR. BENTLEY:  Here's our intent:  Is to 

17     relinquish auto repair, which has been sanctioned 

18     as a lawful use under the RTC.  And that's in the 

19     conditions.  Okay.  That we would pursue auto 

20     sales as the primary use, okay, and any other use 

21     allowed in RTC.  And that in the event auto sales 

22     should cease at that property, then any 

23     redevelopment would fully comply with the RTC.

24              Let me just kind of clarify, is that in 

25     front of the Board they said, "We're looking for 
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1     something other than auto sales."  And when we 

2     kind of regrouped here and met with the   

3     community -- and we had some very good, 

4     enlightening discussions, and very positive with 

5     Ms. Council and members of her development group.  

6              But we also found out, just in terms of 

7     our outreach, other people who supported the auto 

8     sales, okay, and recognized, number one, it had 

9     been there, and number two, thought that what was 

10     out there was compatible with the surrounding 

11     area.

12              So we said, "Let's just kind of press on 

13     with auto sales, because we're getting this kind 

14     of grassroots support from the community for that 

15     particular use."

16              And Ms. Council, with all due respect, 

17     that's just one organization there, okay, that 

18     has a certain perspective on what should be on 

19     that corner.  So that's the way it shook out, and 

20     that's what I'm doing here.

21          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  All right.  Thank you 

22     very much for your testimony.  I appreciate it.

23          MR. BENTLEY:  Thank you.

24          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Development Services, 

25     please.
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1          MR. GRADY:  Brian Grady, Hillsborough County 

2     Development Services.

3              The Applicant is requesting to rezone 

4     from RTC-1, Ruskin Town Center, to a Planned 

5     Development Zoning District, which is an 

6     existing, small commercial building and car sales 

7     lot.  

8              The community utilizes the site for 

9     that, motor vehicle sales, and also to 

10     permit other uses permitted under the RTC Zoning 

11     District found in Land Development Code Section 

12     3.17.00, Ruskin Town Center Development 

13     Regulations.

14              As noted by the Applicant, there are a 

15     number of design requirements that the project is 

16     subject to, and there are some that they are 

17     unable to meet and they're seeking relief from 

18     those.  In particular, off-street parking 

19     standards and also requirements regarding 

20     building frontage and building design.

21              The Applicant, as noted in their prior 

22     testimony and submittals, is seeking relief from 

23     those and proposed alternative design 

24     enhancements to address noncompliance with those 

25     standards.  However, Staff is not supportive of 
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1     the requested waiver of those design standards.

2              With respect to compatibility, 

3     Development Service Staff does find the proposed 

4     rezoning inconsistent with the development 

5     pattern in the area.  

6              Per Land Development Code Section 

7     3.1709h, prohibited uses of the Ruskin Town 

8     Center, Motor vehicle sales, rentals and auctions 

9     of all types is not a permitted use with any of 

10     the Special Zoning District standards under the 

11     development regulations of the Ruskin Town 

12     Center. 

13              Furthermore, the Ruskin Town Center 

14     prohibits other auto-dependent uses such as motor 

15     vehicle repairs, recreational vehicle sales, 

16     convenience stores with fuel pumps, and 

17     mini-warehouses.  

18              Per adjacent uses to the property and 

19     the vicinity are uses that are zoned Ruskin Town 

20     Center and are continued uses found under the 

21     Commercial Zoning District per LDC Section 3.1707 

22     in the Ruskin Town Center regulations or in 

23     compliance with the Ruskin Town Center 

24     regulations consistent with the intent of the 

25     RTC-1 Zoning District.
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1              These uses do not include compatible 

2     commercial auto-dependent uses permitted by the 

3     RTC-1 District.

4              Shell Point Road resides adjacent to the 

5     north of the site, with commercial uses across 

6     the street.  A commercial restaurant is adjacent 

7     and south of the site.  U.S. 41 is adjacent east 

8     of the site.  Commercial uses, including a Family 

9     Dollar, are across the street.  A vacant lot with 

10     a shed on it resides adjacent west of the site.  

11              Given the established development 

12     pattern in the area which consists of uses 

13     consistent with the intent and requirements of 

14     the RTC-1 District, Staff does not find the 

15     proposed motor vehicle sales use compatible.

16              Again, from our perspective, I 

17     understand Mr. Bentley's contention that since 

18     RTC allowed CG uses, we shouldn't be looking at 

19     the RTC.  

20              But, again, like any other Zoning 

21     District, as part of any other compatibility 

22     analysis, you obviously look at the surrounding 

23     zoning pattern to see what uses are permitted.  

24              And so given the fact that within the 

25     RTC this is not a permitted use, and again as 
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1     analyzed here, the presence is not in that area, 

2     we, from a compatibility standpoint, found it not 

3     compatible.

4          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you very much.  

5     Planning Commission, please.

6          MS. HALEY:  Jiwaun Haley, Planning 

7     Commission.

8              The subject property's adopted Future 

9     Land Use category is Office Commercial-20.  The 

10     subject property is located within the Urban 

11     Service Area.  It is within the limits of the 

12     Ruskin SouthShore Areawide Systems Community 

13     Plan.

14              The site is developed with a motor 

15     vehicle sales business consisting of a 

16     1,848-square-foot building and inventory display 

17     mainly along the frontage of Shell Point Road and 

18     U.S. Highway 41.  

19              The surrounding uses in the area include 

20     a fast food restaurant to the south, vacant 

21     parcels to the west, east, and a real estate 

22     office north of the site.

23              The Rezoning Request is to change the 

24     Ruskin Town Center 1 Zoning District to a Planned 

25     Development to recognize the existing motor 
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1     vehicle sales business and allow other RTC-1 

2     permitted uses.  

3              It should be noted that the site 

4     underwent a zoning verification in 2014 and it 

5     was determined by the Development Services 

6     Department that the site failed to establish that 

7     motor vehicle sales was an existing lawful use  

8     at the time of the establishment of the Ruskin 

9     Town Center 1 Zoning District.

10              Policy 9.2 of the Future Land Use 

11     Element states that "Developments must meet or 

12     exceed land development regulations.as   shown on 

13     the site plan, the request is not meeting the 

14     intent of this policy.

15              The site is located within the limits of 

16     the Ruskin Community Plan and within the Ruskin 

17     downtown.  There is specific language within the 

18     Community Plan that expresses how development 

19     within the downtown should be designed.  Because 

20     the parking fronts the site and is a dominant 

21     portion of the site, this creates the look of a 

22     strip commercial development.

23              Objective 23 of the Future Land Use 

24     Element, as well as the Ruskin Community Plan, 

25     discourages strip commercial development.
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1              The Applicant did attempt to make 

2     changes to address the design of the site to 

3     further the intent of the Ruskin Community Plan.  

4     Fences within the RTC-1 area are to be made of 

5     masonry or vinyl or cast iron, so the Applicant 

6     has agreed to remove the chain link fence that is 

7     currently on the site.

8              The Applicant is also providing 

9     additional screening and an awning above the cars 

10     along Shell Point Road and U.S. Highway 41 to 

11     reduce the appearance of the display of cars.

12              Though the Applicant is providing 

13     increased screening along the frontage of the 

14     site, screening and waste storage and mechanical 

15     equipment, the proposed design of the site is 

16     still too much of a deviation from the Ruskin 

17     Community Plan.  

18              And based upon these considerations, the 

19     Planning Commission Staff finds the proposed 

20     Planned Development inconsistent with the Future 

21     of Hillsborough Comprehensive Plan for 

22     Unincorporated Hillsborough County.  Thank you.

23          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you very much.  

24              I'll call at this time for anyone who 

25     would like to speak in support.  Anyone in favor 
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1     of the application.  

2              Yes.  If you could please come forward.  

3     Everyone who wants to speak in favor, if you 

4     could go ahead and come forward to line up, it 

5     speeds everything up.  How many people would like 

6     to speak?  Three?  Three.  Okay.  Then you have 

7     15 minutes.  We'll give you five minutes each.  

8              And whoever would like to go first is 

9     welcome to.  Good evening.  If you can give us 

10     your name and address to start.

11          MR. PIETA:  My name is Ted Pieta.  I live at 

12     2008 Heathfield Circle, Sun City, Florida 33573.

13              And I am the former owner of the 

14     property in question on 108 U.S. Highway 41 in 

15     Ruskin.  My business operations consisted of auto 

16     repair and auto sales.  I was in existence from 

17     approximately December of '86 to December of 

18     2012.  During this time, I attended auto auctions 

19     on a monthly basis.  My wife came to a few of 

20     them with me also.

21              At these auctions, I would purchase 

22     vehicles and then resell them to the general 

23     public.  At all times the car sales side of my 

24     business was licensed to sell automobiles by the 

25     State of Florida Department of Motor vehicles.  
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1     And I sold automobiles as a significant component 

2     of my business.  

3              And I would like to add that the Florida 

4     Department of Motor vehicles, the very epitome of 

5     dot the "i's" and crossed "t's," don't have any 

6     record of my dealer's license, the number of 

7     which was VI15189.  That I had for over a decade.  

8     They have no record of that.

9              The State of Florida DMV required under 

10     the Florida Administrative Code that I maintain 

11     an office clearly separated from the auto repair.  

12     It had to have a separate entrance.  And I 

13     complied with that at all times.

14              I sold the property to Mr. Steven 

15     Kuchlich on or about December 13th, 2012, and at 

16     that time I was retailing automobiles.

17              On or about November 2nd, 2006, 

18     Hillsborough County changed the zoning for the 

19     property from CG to RTC-1 to prohibit both motor 

20     vehicle sales and repair.  

21              The zoning change was never made known 

22     to me by the County, as it did not provide direct 

23     notice of the zoning change.  And I continued to 

24     sell automobiles pretty much right up until the 

25     end when I sold the property to Mr. Kuchlich.
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1              All of my business records, including 

2     licenses with the County and the state and the 

3     DMV, apparently were purged after the sale of the 

4     property.  But I was in there for a lot of years 

5     and I was never once cited by Hillsborough County 

6     for improper use.  Never.

7              And that's what I wanted to say.  There 

8     were in fact legal car sales going on all the 

9     time.

10          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you for your 

11     testimony and coming down.  If you could please 

12     sign in.  Next, please.  Good evening.

13          MRS. PIETA:  Hi.  I'm Donna Pieta.  I live 

14     at 20008 Heathfield Circle, Sun City Center.  

15              I'm Ted's wife for 48 years now.  And I 

16     just -- I agree with everything that he said,  

17     but -- not "but."  I'm sorry.  

18              It has been in existence since like '86 

19     to 2012.  And during this time I stood in the 

20     office, I went to auctions with him, bought cars, 

21     you know, and things like that.  Sorry.  I'm very 

22     nervous.

23          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Go right ahead.  No 

24     one's watching.  It's okay.

25          MRS. PIETA:  Everybody's watching me.  
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1              At all times during the existence of 

2     Ted's the car sales side of the business was 

3     licensed to sell automobiles by the State of 

4     Florida Department of Motor vehicles, and sold 

5     automobiles as a significant component of the 

6     business.

7              We sold the property to Mr. Kuchlich in 

8     December of 2012, and we were never notified of 

9     the change to prohibit both auto sales and auto 

10     repair.  The zoning change was never made known 

11     to us by the County, and Ted continued to sell 

12     automobiles after November 2nd, 2006, until the 

13     sale of the property to Mr. Kuchlich, and was 

14     never cited for this activity by Hillsborough 

15     County.  At all times, Ted sold motor vehicles at 

16     the property.

17          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you for coming 

18     down.  Appreciate it.  If you could sign in.  

19     Yes, sir.

20          MR. DAVIS:  My name is Lee Davis.  I live at 

21     308 14th Street Southwest, Ruskin.  I worked for 

22     Ted in 1986 to 1991, and this business was 

23     selling cars and auto repair.  I own an at-home 

24     auto care in Ruskin today, and as long as I've 

25     been there, Ted has always been selling cars at 
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1     that same property.  That's about what I have.

2          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you for coming 

3     down.  I appreciate your testimony.  Thank you, 

4     sir.  If you could please sign in.  All right.  

5              We'll close the testimony in support, 

6     and we'll call for anyone that would like to 

7     speak in opposition to this application.  Anyone 

8     opposed that would like to testify?  All right.  

9     Good evening.

10          MS. COUNCIL:  Good evening.  Sandra R. 

11     Council, P.O. Box 1115, Ruskin, Florida 33575.

12              I'm going to speak -- I'm President of 

13     the Ruskin Community Development Foundation, but 

14     I'm going to speak as the adjacent property owner 

15     and relinquish my time for the Foundation to 

16     Mr. Chris Bredbenner.

17          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Okay. 

18          MS. COUNCIL:  As the adjacent property 

19     owner, and due respect to Ted and his wife and to 

20     Mr. Davis, I had specific conversations with Ted 

21     asking him about the nonconforming use, that it 

22     was not an allowed use of car sales, and his 

23     response to myself and to my business partner was 

24     that he did not sell cars there, that he had 

25     other property that he sold cars from.  The cars 
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1     that were sitting there were cars that had been 

2     abandoned for nonpayment for repair bills.

3              So that's my recollection of a 

4     conversation, as well as my business partner's 

5     conversation.

6              So I'm in support of staff's 

7     recommendation to deny.

8          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you so much.  

9     If you could please sign in.  Yes, sir.   

10     (Inaudible).

11          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  All right.  Can you 

12     submit it to the Clerk's office and I'll get it.  

13     Absolutely.

14          MR. BREDBENNER:  William Bredbenner, 

15     B-R-E-D-B-E-N-N-E-R.  I am here representing 109 

16     2nd Street Northwest, Ruskin, Florida.  I am a 

17     resident, but here representing the Ruskin 

18     Community Development Foundation, a volunteer 

19     board that was formed years ago.  As Sandy 

20     mentioned, she is our president.  I am a Board 

21     member and speaking for the Board.

22              We applaud Mr. Kuchlich and Mr. Bentley 

23     working with us.  We have met once with them on 

24     October 25th to review.  They came down and met 

25     with us to see, after the remand came through, to 
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1     see if there were any ways to work through this.  

2              And then we also met on January 25th -- 

3     Excuse me -- yes, January 25th, with County 

4     Staff, to see what could be done, and even 

5     explore a letter of carve-out, so to speak, for 

6     it.

7              Our issue is definitely not with a 

8     business coming in there.  That's what we want to 

9     do, is to develop the Ruskin community.  Using 

10     that, we really couldn't find a way to do it and 

11     still preserve the intent of RTC-1 and -2 by 

12     carving that out.  

13              And it would allow for, yes, the 

14     precedent that Mr. Bentley does speak of, of now 

15     anyone wanting to do something outside of that to 

16     come in and get -- and carve out a PD for 

17     themselves.

18              So I would disagree with the claim, his 

19     opinion, that it would be the most compliant.  I 

20     think if this were to pass, it would probably be 

21     the last compliant project in RTC, because no one 

22     will need to follow the rules if we can carve 

23     this out.  So we are worried about that 

24     precedent.

25              The Board did meet after our meeting 
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1     with County Staff where it couldn't be determined 

2     that we in fact -- we could go through the 

3     process of there was a lot more to it.  And we 

4     submitted again our vote that we still continue 

5     to support this Board's decision that it is not 

6     consistent and that it should be moved forward by 

7     the County Commissioners as not consistent.  

8     Thank you.

9          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you for your 

10     time.  I appreciate it.  

11              Anyone else that would like to speak in 

12     opposition?  Sir, if you could please sign in.  

13     Thank you.  All right.  Then we'll close that 

14     portion of the testimony.

15              Mr. Grady, anything further?

16          MR. GRADY:  Nothing further.  I just wanted, 

17     for those who spoke in support or in opposition, 

18     that if you have questions regarding filing oral 

19     argument, Fernando Quinones is in back of the 

20     room here and can answer any questions.

21          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  So we do have a Staff 

22     person available.  All right, perfect.

23              All right.  Mr. Bentley, you have five 

24     minutes for rebuttal.

25          MR. BENTLEY:  I'm going to request a couple 
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1     of additional minutes.  First of all, I'm waiting 

2     for Mr. Pieta to come down.  I want to use him on 

3     rebuttal.

4          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Okay, absolutely.

5          MR. BENTLEY:  Ted, your name and address 

6     again, please.

7          MR. PIETA:  My name is Ted Pieta.  I live at 

8     2008 Heathfield Circle, Sun City Center, Florida.

9          MR. BENTLEY:  Ted, you heard what 

10     Ms. Council had to say about her conversation 

11     with you.  Would you elaborate on that?

12          MR. PIETA:  I really --

13          MR. GRADY:  Will you speak into the 

14     microphone?

15          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Can you grab the 

16     microphone if you're going to do that as well.

17          MR. PIETA:  Well, I really can't elaborate 

18     on that, because I don't have any -- I don't have 

19     any recollection of that conversation whatsoever.  

20              And I realize my memory is not what it 

21     used to be, but I think I would have remembered 

22     that one.  I can remember my dealer's license, 

23     and I can't remember what I had to eat yesterday.  

24     That's all I can tell you.

25          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you.
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1          MR. BENTLEY:  You sold salvaged cars or 

2     something?

3          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Mr. Bentley, you need 

4     to be on the record.

5          MR. BENTLEY:  Thanks, Ted.  That will do it.

6          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you, sir.

7          MR. BENTLEY:  We're good.  Thank you.  

8              Just a couple points.  Not to 

9     re-litigate the zoning interpretation, but that 

10     interpretation related to a different set of 

11     facts.  And also the issue -- and it's set forth 

12     in the Staff report.  

13              This is our bone of contention, is the 

14     RTC says, "Any existing lawful use in existence 

15     on the effective date of this ordinance shall be 

16     considered a lawful use."  End of story.

17              It doesn't say whether it's subordinate 

18     or accessory or principal.  So if you look at 

19     page 2 of the Staff report, they say "A zoning 

20     interpretation was issued," et cetera, et cetera, 

21     and they give the number.  It says, "... to 

22     recognize vehicle sales as the principal use of 

23     the property."  We never alleged that.  We always 

24     alleged that it was subordinate or accessory.

25              So this is the fundamental issue here, 
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1     the misapplication of the Code, okay, that this 

2     was a principal use of the property.  So I didn't 

3     want to re-litigate that zoning interpretation.  

4              And from our perspective, that was four 

5     years ago.  We have a different set of facts 

6     here.  We beat the pavement and found a lot of 

7     people who actually dealt with Ted.  You heard 

8     them testify today.  And the issue is not the 

9     principal use.

10              And you're required under the criteria 

11     as a LUHO to consider the history of the 

12     property.  I think that's the first enumerated 

13     criteria.  So, so much for that.

14              Then Brian indicated that we were 

15     seeking relief from the RTC.  And with all due 

16     respect to Brian, we were not seeking relief from 

17     the RTC.  We were rezoning to PD.  We were not 

18     seeking a waiver or variance from the RTC.  So I 

19     just want that corrected in the record, that 

20     there's no relief from the RTC.

21              Then in terms of -- would it be 

22     appropriate at this point where I can ask the 

23     Staff a couple questions?

24          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  You have two minutes.  

25     Sure.  This is your rebuttal period.
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1          MR. BENTLEY:  Brian, I just have a couple 

2     questions for you.  First, auto sales is a 

3     permitted use under the CG Zoning District, 

4     correct?

5          MR. GRADY:  Correct.

6          MR. BENTLEY:  So presumably auto sales would 

7     be considered compatible with other CG uses, 

8     correct?  

9          MR. GRADY:  In other CG zoning districts, in 

10     a vacuum, yes.

11          MR. BENTLEY:  Okay.  The subject property 

12     has several CG uses either contiguous to or in 

13     close proximity to it, correct?  It's page 4 of 

14     your report.

15          MR. GRADY:  Similar, yes.  CG use, correct.

16          MR. BENTLEY:  So assuming auto sales wasn't 

17     prohibited under the RTC, your opinion would be 

18     that it is compatible with the surrounding land 

19     uses, correct?

20          MR. GRADY:  In a vacuum, if you had an area 

21     that had CG Zoning Districts in an area, and then 

22     you came in to do a CG Zoning District with 

23     similar uses, generally I would say that in that 

24     vacuum, we would find, you know, CG adjacent to a 

25     CG compatible.
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1          MR. BENTLEY:  So assuming that the RTC was 

2     not applicable in this situation, the subject 

3     property as it relates to surrounding zonings and 

4     land uses that are primarily CG would be 

5     compatible, correct?

6          MR. GRADY:  If I understand your question, 

7     you're saying not considering the RTC use issue, 

8     if you're looking at a CG against a CG, those 

9     being compatible, yes.

10          MR. BENTLEY:  Okay.  Thank you.  Then a 

11     couple questions for the Planning Commission and 

12     then I'll be done, Ms. Finch.

13              Ms. Haley, did you author the report 

14     that's in the backup?  Planning Commission 

15     report.

16          MS. HALEY:  18-0798, that report?

17          MR. BENTLEY:  Yes, ma'am.

18          MS. HALEY:  No, I did not.

19          MR. BENTLEY:  Okay.  On page 3, there's two 

20     elements of the Ruskin Community Plan that are 

21     set forth with their goals.  Can you pull out 

22     your report and identify either a goal or a 

23     strategy that the proposed rezoning is in 

24     conflict with?  It starts with "Liveable 

25     Communities, Ruskin Community Plan."
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1          MS. HALEY:  So, there are several bullet 

2     points below Goal 1.

3          MR. BENTLEY:  Yep.

4          MS. HALEY:  So, it says "Encourage 

5     commercial development and redevelopment within 

6     downtown Ruskin and the Town Center and direct 

7     commercial development away from Shell Point  

8     Road -- I'm sorry -- Shell Point Road west and 

9     19th Avenue northwest."  I'm sorry.

10          MR. BENTLEY:  And then Goal 2 on page 4, 

11     would you mind taking a look at that?

12          MS. HALEY:  Sure.  Yes.  Goal 2 states 

13     "Economic development.  Provide opportunities for 

14     business growth and jobs in the Ruskin community, 

15     promote commercial development at a scale and 

16     design that reflects the character of the 

17     community and ensure that future commercial 

18     development with strip development patterns."

19              Goal 1 and Goal 2 were addressed in the 

20     report concerning the strip commercial 

21     development.

22          MR. BENTLEY:  Okay.  So in your professional 

23     opinion, the auto sales is considered strip 

24     development?

25          MS. HALEY:  The Staff report states that.
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1          MR. BENTLEY:  I said in your professional 

2     opinion, is auto sales strip development?

3          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Mr. Bentley, she's 

4     testified --

5          MR. BENTLEY:  Just "Yes" or "No."  That's 

6     all.

7          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Mr. Bentley, she's 

8     filed the report.  She testified she didn't write 

9     the report, and she's answered your question.  

10     Please conclude your rebuttal.

11          THE WITNESS:  Okay.  That will do it.  Thank 

12     you very much.

13          HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you for your 

14     testimony.  Then with that, we'll close Rezoning 

15     PD 18-0798 and go to the second Remand case. 

16                            

17

18
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1              I believe the applicant is here to 

2     explain the request for the continuance.

3          HEARING MASTER SCAROLA:  Good evening.

4          MR. McCORMICK:  Good evening.  We're 

5     requesting a continuance to the November Zoning 

6     Hearing Master Hearing to allow us to have some 

7     additional time to work with Planning Commission 

8     staff on an interpretation regarding the WBRT 

9     Community Plan area.

10          HEARING MASTER SCAROLA:  Okay.  Thank you 

11     for that.  

12              Anybody here today with an interest in 

13     this continuance request, Rezoning PD 19-935?

14              Seeing none, we'll continue that one to 

15     November the 18th.

16          MR. GRADY:  I'll now go through the 

17     published withdrawals and continuances, beginning 

18     on page 5 of the agenda.  

19              Item A.1, Special Use General 

20     Application 19-0220.  This application is being 

21     withdrawn from the Zoning Hearing Master process.

22              Item A.2, RZ-Standard 19-0409.  This 

23     application is being withdrawn from the Zoning 

24     Hearing Master process.

25              Item A.3, RZ-PD 18-0798.  This 
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1     application is being continued by staff to the 

2     October 14th, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master 

3     Hearing.

4              Item A.4, RZ-PD 18-1037.  This 

5     application is out of order to be heard and is 

6     being continued to the October 14th, 2019, Zoning 

7     Hearing Master Hearing.

8              Item A.5, RZ-PD 19-0404.  This 

9     application is continued by staff to the   

10     October 14th, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master 

11     Hearing.

12              Item A.6, Major Mod Application 19-0521.  

13     This application is being continued by staff to 

14     the October 14th, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master 

15     Hearing.

16              Item A.7, RZ-PD 19-0613.  This 

17     application is being continued by staff to the 

18     October 14th, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master 

19     Hearing.

20              Item A.8, RZ-Standard 19-0747.  This 

21     application is out of order to be heard and is 

22     being continued to the October 14th, 2019, Zoning 

23     Hearing Master Hearing.

24              Item A.9, RZ-Standard 19-0748.  This 

25     application is out of order to be heard and is 
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1      application is out of order to be heard and -- 949,

2      excuse me.  19-0949.  This application is out of

3      order to be heard and is being continued to the

4      August 19, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

5            Item 24, RZ-Standard 19-0956.  This

6      application is out of order to be heard and is

7      being continued to the August 19, 2019, Zoning

8      Hearing Master Hearing.

9            Item A-25, Special Use SU-AB 19-0957.  This

10      application is being continued by staff to the

11      August 19, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

12            Item A-26, RZ-PD 18-098 (sic).  This

13      application is out of order to be heard and is

14      being continued to the September 16, 2019, Zoning

15      Hearing Master Hearing.

16            Item A-27, RZ-PD 19-0837.  This application

17      is being continued by the applicant to the

18      October 14th, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

19            And item A-28, RZ-Standard 19-0730.  This

20      application is out of order to be heard and is

21      being continued to the December 16, 2019, Zoning

22      Hearing Master Hearing.

23            That concludes all withdrawals and

24      continuances.

25            HEARING MASTER SCAROLA:  Thank you for that,

18-0798
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1     joining us at the dais tonight are, to my left, Mr.

2     Louis Whitehead with the County Attorney's office;

3     to his left is Melissa Lenhard with the

4     Hillsborough County City County Planning

5     Commission; and to her left is Tom Hiznay with

6     Development Services.  Tom will be handling the

7     Special Use Applications on tonight's agenda.

8           We have no changes to the published agenda, so

9     I will go through the published withdrawals and

10     continuances beginning on page 5 of the agenda.

11           First item is A.1., Rezoning Application

12     19-0017.  this application is being withdrawn from

13     the Zoning Hearing Master process.

14           Item A.2., Rezoning Application 19-0554, this

15     application is being withdrawn from the Zoning

16     Hearing Master process.

17           Item A.3., Major Mod Application 19-0669,

18     this application is being withdrawn from the Zoning

19     Hearing Master process.

20           Item A.4., Rezoning Application 18-0798, this

21     application is out of order to be heard and is

22     being continued to the July 29, 2019, Zoning

23     Hearing Master Hearing.

24           Item A.5., Rezoning Application 19-0102, this

25     application is being continued by the applicant to
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1      applicant here for Bali Properties?  Bali

2      Properties?  Is there anybody here for the Bali

3      Property request today?

4            Anybody recognize the applicant in the

5      audience anywhere?

6            MR. GRADY:  I would suggest at this point

7      we'll move on the agenda.  We'll see if we can find

8      out what's transpiring with the applicant.

9            HEARING MASTER SCAROLA:  Sounds good.

10            MR. GRADY:  All right.  I'll now go through

11      the published withdrawals and continuances

12      beginning on page 5 of the agenda.  The first is

13      item is item A-1, Rezoning Application 19-0184.

14      This application is being withdrawn from the Zoning

15      Hearing Master process.

16            Item A-2, Special Use Application 19-0611.

17      This application is being withdrawn from the Zoning

18      Hearing Master process.

19            Item A-3, Rezoning Application 19-0636.

20      This application is being withdrawn from the Zoning

21      Hearing Master process.

22            Item A-4, Rezoning Application 18-0798.

23      This application is out of order to be heard and

24      has been continued to the June 17 Zoning Hearing

25      Master Hearing.
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1     6 p.m.

2          MR. GRADY:  That concludes changes to the 

3     agenda.  

4              I will now go through the published 

5     withdrawals and continuances beginning on page 5 

6     of the agenda.  

7              The first item A.1, Rezoning Application 

8     19-0183 is being withdrawn from the Zoning 

9     Hearing Master process.

10              Item A.2, Major Mod Application 19-0411, 

11     this application is being withdrawn from the 

12     Zoning Hearing Master process.  

13              Item A.3, Rezoning Application 19-0451, 

14     this application is also being withdrawn from the 

15     Zoning Hearing Master process.  

16              Item A.4, Rezoning Application 18-0798, 

17     this application is out of order to be heard and 

18     is being continued to the May 13th Zoning Hearing 

19     Master Hearing.

20              Item, A.5, Rezoning Application 18-1349, 

21     this application will be continued by the 

22     applicant to the May 13th Zoning Hearing Master 

23     Hearing.  

24              Item A.6, Special Use Application 

25     19-0095, this application is being continued by 
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1            MR. GRADY:  That's the only change to the

2      agenda.  I'll now go through the published

3      withdrawals and continuances beginning on page 5 of

4      the agenda.

5            The first item is item A-1, Rezoning

6      Application 18-798.  The request -- this

7      application is out of order to be heard and being

8      continued to the April 22nd, 2019, Zoning Hearing

9      Master Hearing.

10            Item A-2, Rezoning Application 18-1349.

11      This application is continued by the applicant to

12      the April 22nd Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

13            Item A-3, Major Mod Application 18-1493.

14      This application is being continued by the

15      applicant to the April 22nd Zoning Hearing Master

16      Hearing.

17            Item A-4, Major Mod Application 18-1494.  The

18      application is being continued by the applicant to

19      the April 22nd Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

20            Item A-5, Special Use Application 19-0095.

21      This application is out of order to be heard and is

22      being continued to the April 22nd Zoning Hearing

23      Master Hearing.

24            Item A-6, Rezoning Application 19-0102.

25      This application is being continued by the
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1      Hillsborough County Development Services.

2            Before we go through the changes to the

3      agenda and withdrawals and continuances, I'll

4      introduce folks here joining us at the dais.  To my

5      left is Cameron Clark with the County Attorney's

6      Office; to his left is Yeneka Mills with the

7      Hillsborough County City-County Planning

8      Commission; to her left is Tom Hiznay with

9      Development Services.  Tom will be handling the

10      Special Use cases on tonight's agenda.

11            I'd also like to introduce Maricel Medrano.

12      Maricel, if you could stand up and raise your hand.

13      If you any questions regarding oral argument and

14      filing oral argument, which Cameron will discuss

15      later on in the introductions to the agenda, any

16      questions regarding the oral argument and the

17      filing of that, Maricel is here to assist you with

18      those questions and any assistance you may need

19      with that.

20            With that, I'll go through the -- we have two

21      requested changes on the agenda.  The first one is

22      on page 7 of the agenda.  Item B-2, Rezoning

23      Application 18-0798.  This is a remand.

24            The applicant is requesting a continuance to

25      the March 18th, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master
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1      Hearing.  I believe the applicant's here to make

2      the request for that continuance.

3            HEARING MASTER SCAROLA:  This is for Hearing

4      Officer Finch.  So, yes, please come forward.  And

5      this is directed right to Hearing Officer Finch.

6            HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Good evening.

7            MR. BENTLEY:  Good evening, Ms. Finch.  My

8      name is Mark Bentley, 401 East Jackson Street,

9      Tampa, 33602.  I represent the applicant.

10            We had requested a continuance to March, and

11      I had advised the Ruskin Community Association of

12      our request, and that the hearing would not be

13      going forward this evening.  We actually have a

14      meeting scheduled with some county officials

15      concerning this matter, I think, this Thursday.  So

16      I'd appreciate your consideration.

17            HEARING MASTER FINCH:  All right.  Fair

18      enough.  Then we will grant the continuance.  So

19      agenda item B-2 on page 7, Rezoning PD 18-0798 will

20      be continued to the March 18th, 2019, Zoning

21      Hearing Master Hearing at 6:00 p.m. and will not be

22      heard this evening.

23            MR. BENTLEY:  Thank you.

24            HEARING MASTER FINCH:  Thank you,

25      Mr. Bentley.
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1            Item A-11, Rezoning Application 18-0798.

2      This application is being continued by the

3      applicant to the January 22nd, 2019, Zoning Hearing

4      Master Hearing.

5            Item A-12, Special Use Application 18-0937.

6      This application is out of order to be heard and is

7      being continued to the January 22nd, 2019, Zoning

8      Hearing Master Hearing.

9            Item A-13, Rezoning Application 18-1048.

10      This application is being continued by the

11      applicant to the January 22nd, 2019, Zoning Hearing

12      Master Hearing.

13            Item A-14, Rezoning Application 18-1054.

14      This application is being continued by staff to the

15      January 22nd, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

16            Item A-15, Rezoning Application 18-1153.

17      This application is being continued by the

18      applicant January 22nd, 2019, Zoning Hearing Master

19      Hearing.

20            Item A-16, Rezoning Application 18-1163.

21      This application is being continued by the

22      applicant to the January 22nd, 2019, Zoning Hearing

23      Master Hearing.

24            Item A-17, Rezoning Application 18-1349.

25      This application is out of order to be heard and is
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1            Item A-7, Rezoning Application 18-1037.  This

2      application is being continued to the

3      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

4            Item A-8, Rezoning Application 18-1048.  This

5      application is being continued to the

6      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

7            Item A-9, Rezoning Application 18-1054.  This

8      application is being continued to the

9      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

10            Item A-10, Rezoning Application 18-1069.

11      This application is being continued to the

12      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

13            Item A-11, Rezoning Application 18-1106.

14      This application is being continued to the

15      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

16            Item A-12, Rezoning Application 18-1153.

17      This application is being continued to the

18      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

19            Item A-13, Rezoning Application 18-1163.

20      This application is being continued to the

21      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

22            Item A-14, Major Mod Application 18-1206.

23      This application is being continued to the

24      December 17th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

25            Item A-15, Rezoning Application 18-1252.
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1     A1 and A2 are being withdrawn.  

2              The following items are being continued 

3     because they're out of order to the August 20th, 

4     2018, Zoning Hearing Master hearing:  Item A3, 

5     Rezoning Application 17-0416; Item A4, Rezoning 

6     Application 17-1120; item A5, Rezoning 

7     Application 18-0404; Item A6, 18-0540; Item A7, 

8     Rezoning Application 18-0544.  

9              Again, those items out of order and 

10     being continued to the August 28th, 2018, Zoning 

11     Hearing Master Hearing.  

12              Zoning Application 18-0568, this 

13     application is being continued by the applicant 

14     to the August 20th, 2018, Zoning Hearing Master 

15     Hearing.  

16              Item A9, Rezoning Application 18-0646, 

17     this application is out of order to be heard and 

18     will be continued to the August 20th, 2018, 

19     Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.  

20              Item A10, Rezoning Application 18-0798, 

21     this application has been continued by the 

22     applicant to the August 20th, 2018, Zoning 

23     Hearing Master Hearing.

24              Item A11, Rezoning Application 18-0800, 

25     this application is being continued by the 
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MM 22-0452 Brian Grady 1. Revised Staff Report Yes (copy) 
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RZ 22-0439 Brian Grady 1. Revised Staff Report Yes (copy) 

RZ 22-0439 Jessica Icerman 2. Applicant Presentation Packet Yes (copy) 

RZ 18-0798 Brian Grady 1. Revised Staff Report Yes (copy) 

RZ 18-0798 Mark Bentley 2. Applicant Presentation Packet Yes (copy) 

RZ 18-0798 Sandy Council 3. Opposition Presentation Packet No 

RZ 20-1253 Kami Corbett 1. Applicant Presentation Packet No 
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RZ 20-1253 Sam Calco 3. Opposition Presentation Packet No 
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RZ 20-1253 Susan Guess 5. Opposition Presentation Packet No 

RZ 20-1253 Christopher Capkovic 6. Opposition Presentation Packet No 

RZ 22-0580 Isabelle Albert 1. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 22-0697 Todd Pressman 1. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 22-0702 Todd Pressman 1. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 22-0441 William Molloy 1. Applicant Presentation Packet No 
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Le Blanc, Cindy-Jean

From: Andrews, Charles
Sent: Wednesday, March 13, 2019 1:07 PM
To: Le Blanc, Cindy-Jean
Subject: FW: Car Credit RZ: 18-0798
Attachments: Signed Rezoning Car Credit letter.pdf

Cindy,

Please upload into Optix.  Thanks! 

Sincerely,

Charles Andrews, AICP, CNU-A
Senior Planner 
Development Services Department 
Community Development Section 

P: (813) 276-8372 
F: (813) 272-5348
E: andrewsch@HCFLGov.net
W: HCFLGov.net

Hillsborough County 
601 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, FL 33602 

Facebook  |  Twitter  |  YouTube  |  LinkedIn  |  HCFL Stay Safe

Please note: All correspondence to or from this office is subject to Florida’s Public Records law.

From: s council [mailto:mulletwrappernews@gmail.com]
Sent:Wednesday, March 13, 2019 10:44 AM
To:Mark Bentley <markb@jpfirm.com>; Andrews, Charles <AndrewsCh@hillsboroughcounty.org>
Cc: Ty Maxey <TMaxey@maserconsulting.com>
Subject: Car Credit RZ: 18 0798

[External]

Dear Mr. Bentley, 

The Ruskin Community Development Foundation (RCDF) Board of Directors recently met to discuss your draft
proposal for the additional permitted use of "motor vehicle sales" to Tax Folio 55215.0000, DBA Car Credit.  

The Board reaffirms the position stated in the August 13, 2018 letter to Charles Andrews, Senior Planner 
Hillsborough County Development Services. I have attached the newly drafted letter to Mr. Andrews for your 
review.
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Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

Sandy Council 
President  
RCDF
813-520-3309

This email is from an EXTERNAL source and did not originate from a Hillsborough County email address.  Use caution 
when clicking on links and attachments from outside sources.
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